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Purpose of the Study

The purpose of this study was to explore the factors that led the members of Cohort IX to begin the doctoral program.

This study involved an exploration through taped interviews of the factors leading to the decision to begin the doctoral program.  This study focused on members of Cohort IX.  Interviews were taped and transcribed by members of the cohort.  Those transcribed interviews were then coded in an attempt to find commonalities among the interviews of various cohort members.  Findings from this investigation have been provided within this document.

Guiding Initial Questions or Perspectives

Several questions were explored before and during the process of developing the interview protocol.  These questions addressed a series of possible factors for choosing to begin the doctoral program.  These initial questions which were formulated by the cohort as a group are as follows.

· What made you decide to begin the doctoral program?

· Where do you live and do you enjoy living there?

· What were some of the specific factors that influenced your decision to begin the program?

· Did location here have an effect on your decision?

· How do you think the factors that affected your decision to begin the program related to your personal and professional objectives?

· Can you think of any other aspects that I have neglected to ask that might be important in the factors that affected your decision to start the program?

Interview Protocol Utilized

After evaluating the initial questions, a formal interview protocol was developed which includes the questions below.  This list of questions include questions relating to factors that motivated members of Cohort IX to begin the doctoral program as well as throw-away questions.  The throw-away questions were included as a means of potentially breaking the ice and making the interviewee as comfortable as possible with the interview process.

1. Tell me a little about yourself; what do you do for a living?

2. What made you decide to begin the doctoral program?

3. What were some of the specific factors that influenced your decision to begin the program?

4. Did location here have an effect on your decision?

5. How do you think the factors that affected your decision to begin the program related to your personal and professional objectives?

6. Can you think of any other aspects that I have neglected to ask that might be important in the factors that affected your decision to start the program?

Transcribed Interviews

The data utilized in this study includes information taken from four interviews.  Each of these interviews involved the interview of a member of Cohort IX regarding factors that lead them to begin the doctoral program. The interviews were taped, after which, each interview was transcribed as closely as possible to what had actually been said on tape.  Following the transcription of the interviews, the written interviews were explored for factors that addressed the question "What made you decide to begin the doctoral program?"  Those portions concerning these factors were highlighted in the transcriptions.  Additionally, this highlighted data was analyzed for possible commonalities that existed throughout the different interviews.  Through this open-coding process, common threads were discovered and put into several categories.  

The data from interview #1 addressing the factors motivating members of Cohort IX to begin the doctoral program were highlighted in Magenta.  The data from interview #2 addressing the factors motivating members of Cohort IX to begin the doctoral program were highlighted in Green.  The data from interview #3 addressing the factors motivating members of Cohort IX to begin the doctoral program were highlighted in Yellow.  The data from interview #4 addressing the factors motivating members of Cohort IX to begin the doctoral program were highlighted in Blue.

Interview #1

Interview Questions:

1. Tell me a little about yourself; what do you do for a living?

2. What made you decide to begin the doctoral program?

3. What were some of the specific factors that influenced your decision to begin the program?

4. Did location here have an effect on your decision?

5. How do you think the factors that affected your decision to begin the program related to your personal and professional objectives?

6. Can you think of any other aspects that I have neglected to ask that might be important in the factors that affected your decision to start the program?

Interview:
Allen:
Hello Duane, um..  Tell me a little about yourself; what do you do for a living?

Duane:
Well, currently I work as assistant dean for judicial affairs and basically with that comprises that I'm in charge of all discipline on campus in terms of the university's code of conduct and.. and when we get into the code of conduct we talk about how we want students to behave with each other in terms of um.. respect for one another and in terms of civility and those type of issues.  I also am overseeing the discipline process as far as uh.. the residence halls are concerned cause you have some different issues that go on within the residence halls in terms of uh.. loud music in terms of intervisitation policy and things of that nature.  Part of my job requires me as a judicial officer to uh..  to uh.. train a university disciplinary committee and to train a residence hall hearing committee.  In the disciplinary hearing committee is comprised of faculty staff and students and basically what they do is that they hear cases that students who decide to go before that particular body.  The residence hall hearing committee basically will hear cases that will deal with uh.. issues that occur in the residence hall.  All of that, the residence hall issues get referred to me from my housing director or my residence hall directors from the director of residence life so they flow from there to my office and I, in turn, have them flow through uh.. to the university disciplinary hearing committee or to the residence hall hearing committee.  The other piece of my job, I do a summer program called Youth Opportunities Unlimited which is a program that has been targeted for at-risk youth in terms of, it could be grades, it could be single-parent households uh.. or a number of things but they're target for being at risk for dropping out of school.  It's a dropout prevention program we try to encourage students to uh.. at a minimum graduate from high school or receive a GED.  Now, while the students are here uh.. its a 46-day program, they don't go home, they work for half of a day and they go to class for half of a day, that's five days a week.  On the weekends, they uh.. we do cultural enrichment trips on Saturdays and on Sundays its more or less a activity where they can do basically what they want (go to church, wash clothes, go to Wal-Mart, purchase different items and things of that nature, so.  I've been doing that... This has been going on 8 years.  To be honest with you I only initially intended to do that 2 years and some how, you know, it stayed with my office and consequently its hard for me to get rid of it because it brings a certain economic value to the campus cause you're talking about federal dollars coming to the university from the standpoint I've had a budget as large as uh.. 320,000 dollars to spend over a 6 1/2 week period and that's a lot of money to bring to the university setting, to the community and spend.

Allen:
So that's not part of your regular job; its just something that you took on after you uh..

Duane:
Right, when I initially.. I worked on campus in admissions and records office at the time as a recruiter and I moved over into the student affairs area as the director of minority student development in uh.. December of 1992 and so, once I came over here, about four months into the position, you know, I was approached and said well, you know, it looks like we're not going to get rid of the YOU program so we're going to let you direct it and at that time I didn't have a clue as to what YOU was all about and so basically its a summer program I'll start gearing up for mid to late February into March with interviews and we try to hire uh.. mid April and that really depends upon if I have an idea of what type of funding that I'm going to have.

Allen:
Um.  What made you decide to begin the doctoral program?

Duane:
A number of things, as I began to uh.. talk with different mentors and different professionals, individuals that were at the deans level, the vice-president level, they all said that, you know, you are going to have to have a doctorate program and I think for me the greater issue is that, you know, do you want to stay in this field and after I decided yes I want to stay in this field then I thought, you know, I'm going to have to do it and so you can only go so far with the masters degree and then you basically level out.  If you want to step in the next level as far as managerial at the dean of students level, the vice-chancellor, vice-president level you are going to have to have a doctorate degree and that was really the impetus that started me to really start thinking about the doctoral program uh.. and doing some other things cause basically where I'm at now, I've more or less leveled out.

Allen:
So they basically told you in order to advance you have got to get a higher degree?

Duane:
In order to advance or move to another institution that, you know, in a higher position with supervisory responsibility, in all probability at the division 1A level comprehensive institution level, you know, medium size institution, ten to twelve thousand students that's what you are going to have to have.

Allen:
What were some of the specific factors that influenced your decision to begin the program?

Duane:
Uh.. I applied for a couple of jobs that I didn't get and, you know, it was doctorate preferred but I put my name in the pool anyway and to find out on the back end that uh..  you know, they were specifically looking at doctors only and how I found that information out is that I called a friend of mine that had a buddy on that campus that, you know, luckily was sitting on the committee and that is what he told us hey look were only looking at doctors.  I know it says doctorate preferred but we are only looking at those individuals that have doctorate degrees.  And so that was really kinda the situation uh.. that everybody was telling me about so I thought well uh eventually I'm going to have to do it so uh.. here I am.

Allen:
What were some of the other factors or were there any other factors that prompted you into beginning?

Duane:
No, not really, not really.

Allen:
Um..  Did location here have an effect on it?

Duane:
Most definitely.  Uh.. one of the things that I looked at, I looked at a number of institutions.  I looked at the University of Memphis which was Memphis State at the time.  I looked at OLE MISS University; actually I went to the OLE MISS campus and I visited with some of their faculty members and I was very serious about, you know, jumping in their program because it was a weekend program every other weekend.  It was specifically, they had a K through 12 cohort and a higher ed. cohort so I was very interested in that.  Uh.. and I also looked at Arkansas State University program but what it really boiled down to uh.. one of my concerns was that, you know, I already have two degrees from this institution.  I didn't want a third one but for me what it really boiled down to is that I talked with other uh.. I talked with my dean, I talked with other individuals in the field and what they all basically told me was that it didn't matter; you just had to have it and the only way that you are going to be able to, you know, exceed the current cap that you're at is that you have to have a doctorate level degree so ultimately what played into factor for me was that ok you're going to travel two hours, put the gas, you know, the gas mileage, the mileage on my car, spending gas money and all those other things associated with uh.. you know, traveling every other week because at that time I didn't know anyone that was attending this university so, uh that was an issue, time away from my family, uh the fact that lets say for example that you need to talk to a professor uh you couldn't just jump up out of your seat and walk down there and talk to a professor.  You'd have to make an appointment, wait till the next weekend, and make a special trip.  So all those things played a key factor in why uh.. I chose Arkansas State University.  Other things that financially, uh, you know, the financial gains here of being a faculty or staff member only requires me to pay 50% of the tuition and so obviously that was an issue although OLE MISS had access, they had some minority grants but that wasn't guaranteed and they also had book vouchers uh.. but still I felt like the wear and tear on my vehicle and the money that I would spend on gas mileage, plus, I would have to have with that particular system you had to have overnight lodging uh, because the classes were on Friday and Saturday.  Uh, so that's basically what it boiled down to and I felt like this was a good program.  It was new.  I had heard a lot of good things about it and so... I'm here. 

Allen:
So, one of the primary factors for you was the fact that you was that you live in the same town as the doctorate (Do you live in the same town?)

Duane:
Yes. Yes, most definitely the primary factor uh, biggest issue I have three children, one thirteen, he lives in Parkin and he comes to see me every.. every other weekend so I didn't know how that was going to affect that situation.  And I have a ten year old daughter and I have a four year old daughter and so, you know, leaving on the weekends, leaving mom at home with the kids for that entire time and during the week trying to get prepared for class, I felt like that was going to be a tough situation and as I have discovered, you know, it was tough that first semester being in the program uh.. with both of us cause I think my wife took a class although I advised her not to she took a class anyway so what I think we both learned was that this is a tough process.  It's.. it's not easy; it takes a lot of preparation time so being able to do that here, ah, is.. is a much better situation and having access to my professors, having access to the students, uh, Ed is in the cohort, I can walk upstairs and bang some ideas off him.  You're here.  If we needed to get together it wouldn't be that difficult because we're located within a close proximity so we could pull together and meet and talk about some issues so when I weighed all the factors and obviously, I mean this was the choice.  In terms of Memphis, Memphis really didn't have what I want.  I mean it was more of a counseling emphasis and I didn't really want to get into that particular aspect cause in higher ed. It's more emphasis based upon student services, uh and my field is student services and student development and each are different issues.

Allen:
I have a young child at home and I have found..  I found out that it is difficult, much more difficult that I anticipated being at first (originally).  Uh, did you find that?

Duane:
Uh, for both my kids because my kids, I have one kid that's in...  that's my oldest daughter, she's in piano.  She is also in basketball.  She is also in choir.  So what that means is that, you know, on those days when I'm in class and her piano lessons happen to fall on Tuesday.  My youngest daughter was in dance and that happened to fall on Tuesdays also so you have my wife had to carry most of the burden towards transporting students, transporting kids, picking up, transporting to and from and... and trying to maintain all of that and plus maintain, you know, help with maintaining the household.  So it's just tough.  Uh, and then, you know, you miss out on some quality time with your kids like my daughter played on a number of Tuesday nights that I had to miss her game which I just..  I like to go to the games to see her play and see how she progresses from game to game and so, you know, from that particular aspect, it's tough, it's tough.

Allen:
Yea, I found that also.  Um..  let me ask you uh how do you think that those factors, those factors that determined where that.. that you were going to start the program, how do you think those factors relate to your personal and professional objectives?

Duane:
Uh, In terms of..  That's a good question.  I think they are very much so interrelated.  Uh, I think that my personal objective as far as..  Job wise is that once I receive this degree...  is to uh,  I know that I'm going to be more marketable.  I already know that, I feel more comfortable and I know that doors are going to open for the simple fact that I do have a doctorate degree, so I do anticipate, uh, us leaving the city of Jonesboro at some point in time and I think that's going to be.. and I am also anticipating me finding a situation that's going to be good for me.  I'm anticipating me finding a situation where I'm going to be compensated financially at a higher pay level.  And I think from the personal standpoint that's going to take some strain off my wife; right now my wife is an assistant principal and I think she has talked about on a number of occasions the stress level that she's going through as she goes through on a daily basis and she had mentioned on a number of occasions about actually going back to the classroom or maybe even doing something different or maybe if we move to another area or another university town, there may be an opportunity for her to work on campus.  And I think.. which would be less stressful cause I think that she is more valuable in the classroom, I think especially at the higher ed. level because she would bring to the table practical experience,  a practitioner's.. a practitioner's approach from the standpoint of being a classroom teacher for seven years and from the standpoint of being an assistant principal uh.. the other side of the elementary school system.  Uh, so she would bring all of that to the table and obviously I just..  I just feel that she would be a valuable resource to students from that standpoint and could give them a practical as opposed to sometimes I think we paint this rosy picture about what, you know, K through twelve is supposed to be or what it is and when students actually get out there that's not what it is.  

Allen:
Uh, let me ask you one final question.  Um, can you think of any other aspects, anything that you think I have neglected to ask that might be important in, um, in the factors that affect your decision to start the program?

Duane:
No.  No, those are.. those are the primary factors, finances, location, uh, opportunity from the standpoint of visiting the professors on an ongoing basis uh, and just I just felt like it would be easier.  I can't imagine.. I can't imagine traveling to the University of Memphis once or twice a week, um, and, or traveling to the University of Mississippi every weekend to try and make this family situation work.  I mean, your married, you know that relationships are tough to maintain at it is and, you know, when you put strain on a relationship like that, I mean, it can cause all kinds of problems so the fact that I was here, I think worked out for the benefit of both me and my wife.

Allen:
Alright, well I appreciate your uh, answers to the questions and for you taking the time to answer those questions.

Duane:
Your welcome.

Data from interview #1 was explored and the factors from the transcription of that interview that contributed to the interviewee's decision to begin the doctoral program were extracted.  These factors are included below with portions of the interview that support their inclusion in the specific categories listed.

1. Advancement

"…mentors…professionals…said…you are going to have to have a doctorate program…to step to the next level."
"…you are going to have to have a doctorate degree and that was really the impetus."

"I applied for a couple of jobs that didn't get..it was doctorate preferred." [Committees 

were "…only looking at those individuals that have doctorate degrees."]
2. Location

"most definitely played a role ("primary factor", "biggest issue")"

"ultimately what played into factor for me…travel…time away from my family"

If you need to talk with a professor you can "walk down there and talk to a professor."

"…having access to my professors…"

"having access to students"

"easier" because of living in the same town.
3. Professional Development

Being more marketable

"doors are going to open"
4. Economics (long-run)

"I'm going to be compensated financially at a higher pay level"
5. Economics (short-run)

"50% of the tuition" discount
Interview #2

Qualitative Research & Evaluation

EDFN 8783

Dr David Holman

In Class Interview Transcription

Ed Rayburn

Arkansas State University

#1 Well Mike, tell me about uh your experience here at ASU so far.

#2 You know I uh I’ve enjoyed being here, as a graduate assistant and uh teaching class and I uh like the doctoral program so far.

#1 How long have you been here?

#2 Uh I was here, I came here in August and I’ve been here ever since so uh about 7 or 8 months.

#1 Seven or eight months? What would you say uh would be the foremost factor that caused you to start a doctoral program?

#2 Well, I had uh I had twenty-eight years experience as a uh public schools as a teacher and administrator and uh in twenty-eight years you can retire and so uh I went through retirement and uh I’m, I’m not the kind of person that just can’t do anything so I decided that my goal must, may be to go into a doctoral program and uh some other factors include that my son was already up here working uh in the Center for Excellence and he liked the people here so he introduced me to them, uh he was going to school here and I uh came up here because I wanted to be with him and then he left to be with his mom.

#1 I see, um so uh I guess you are saying that one of the reasons that you chose to begin the doctoral program is uh to be uh coming uh up to ASU and be closer to your son?

#2 That’s correct, that’s correct And, and also I’m at a point in my life where I’ve got uh I’m gonna do something differently cause I’m through with the twenty-eight years and I’ve got to decide whether I am going to take this doctoral program and be a superintendent or if I should teach in a college and I think the graduate assistantship has helped me to decide that.  

#1 Really? Tell me more about that. What do, what do you think you do want to do

with it?

#2 Well I’m teaching uh introduction to teaching in the secondary school and I think I can make a difference in students and uh when you’re in the teaching field because we definitely need it and I like to kind of recruit them into our program and try to get them ready for the public schools and uh be a teacher there when they graduate. 

#1 So uh your teaching experience that you had here as a graduate assistant uh has caused you to move uh to move in that direction or uh tell me a little more about that.

#2 yeah, uh it has helped me to make up my mind. Right now I’m still undecided uh of course economics some impact on it and if I can keep collecting my teacher retirement plus teach in a college I can make a pretty good living or if I go back and become a superintendent I can make about the same however the uh stress and so forth would be more as a superintendent and less as a college professor in my opinion

#1 um huh, so uh tell me about um proximity  did…did I know you came up here because you wanted to be close to your son but is this close to your home or uh 

#2 yes well my home is in Fordyce its not really close to my home but its so close to where my my son lives with his mother in Searcy so its about an hour and 15 minute drive and I can, you know just when ever I want to I can stop in there and see him. And he can come up and see me, I’m living in his condominium so uh he comes up he still has some materials up here some of his things some of his clothes and things like that up here.

#`1 so I so I think that you’re saying that proximity did not didn’t really play that big of a part.

#2 well it’s a factor it would determine uh I came here instead of Fayetteville because I could be closer to my son uh it would have been the same circumstances for us getting a degree.

#1 Um let me ask you this you said you mentioned Fayetteville did you look at a doctoral program there or….

#2 I have looked at it before, there and ULAR. But really with my son knowing the people up here that was uh like I say he introduced me to them and that played a big difference.
#1 the people in the doctoral program?

#2 No, the professors that he uh worked for.

#1 I see.

#2 I didn’t know any of the people up here in the doctoral program.

#1 I see. What about the uh the program up at Fayetteville, did you have a chance to talk with any of the professors there or…..

#2 I, I have talked to them before, but one of the things they told me too was if I wanted to teach at Fayetteville, that they would not want someone that had graduated Fayetteville so that’s another factor in case I wanted to teach up there, uh I came here instead.

#1 Oh, ok I see. Um well what other factors were involved in your decision to start a doctoral program other than the ones you have mentioned?

#2 uh, I guess my desire to do something different, and to uh progress I my education background, and uh to be productive for the rest of my life.
#1 And you retired from the teacher system already, is that correct is that right?

#2 yes, in twenty-eight years you can retire with full benefits so….

#1 What areas uh what areas were you uh in in that?

#2 OK, I taught for nine years and coached and I was an administrator for uh… gosh uh nin….. nineteen, ha, ha, nineteen years. and as an administrator I also was an athletic director and was a teacher, and I uh I taught some classes and I coached as a matter of fact I coached baseball last year.

#1um huh, I’m surprised with your uh background in secondary education that you chose you know that you chose to perhaps go to higher education when you graduate with your degree, uh…

#2 Well, here with uh an education leadership degree, I can go either direction so its not like I have made a decision to go higher ed or secondary ed yet, so it leaves my options open and like I say I have to worry about that in the future. I’m not sure what I am going to do.

#1 Have you, have you put any thought into what factors might influence your decision on that as to whether you go…..

#2 Like I said monetary would be one thing, uh if a real good job opened up as a superintendent in an area that I wanted to live and was in the proximity to some of my friends, then I would go that direction. And if uh I found a good college position open then I uh think I would enjoy that probably and if it was close, close enough where I could see my family every once in a while then that would be my decision. So whatever I am suppose to do I think I am predestined to do that. 

#1 Have you thought about any particular colleges that you might be interested in teaching in?

#2 Yeah, uh of course Fayetteville, Old Miss, is another one, I talked to Dr. Ferguson and he is from , from Old Miss and he says it’s a real good school, and he thinks I would like it there and its not too far from this area.  Uh ULAR possibly, Henderson, so any thing in the area.  OBU uh cause I am Baptist, uh UCA or I guess those are the only places I have thought about.  And as far as a superintendents job, I uh Search area, Beebe, uh I’m not sure exactly where else, Harrison maybe, Batesville except at Batesville, my, my one of my assistant principals is superintendent there so I don’t expect it to open up anytime soon. You never know what is going to open up or where I need to apply for.

#1 Since you uh started the program at the university uh do you have uh any one professor maybe that has influenced your decision to go into higher Ed over another one or uh……

#2 Doctor Dickerson and I have talked about superintendent jobs and uh he has about convinced me that it would be a little bit better for my career to go to work in uh a college than to be a superintendent uh he says the stress level as a superintendent is so much greater and with me collecting my teacher retirement, I would have to stop collecting teacher retirement and go into the uh be a superintendent and just go after that pay uh I have to stay out of  teacher retirement for three years and before I could start my new program with the teacher retirement system so….

#1 You mean if you went back into the superintendence you would have to do that but not if you….

#2 Not if I went into higher Ed because they are two separate teacher retirement programs.

#1 I see. So would you say cost is another factor that would influence maybe your decision?

#2 yeah economics definitely and like I say, being in the public school for twenty-eight years, you’re on the firing line for seven days a week and for just about 12 hours a day so it’s the stress level kind of gets up of course being in this program being a GA has helped my stress level quite a bit. Ha, Ha.

#1 Ha, ha, ha, ha, well you have mentioned stress you know two or three times during the course of the interview was stress a big factor in the super intendancy in your previous experience? 

#2 you mean as being a principal?

#1 uh huh.

#2yeah its always tough and the time element is another one because I lived on campus and I was accessible to the kids and the parents you know just about day and night seven days a week and it kind of builds up on you and I was not only being a principal I was athletic director, cheerleader sponsor, coach, it just gets to be a little much at times.

#1 I see. 

#2 of course all principals do that type of thing so it’s not just me. Ha, ha, ha

#2 Ha, ha, ha.

#1 Well thank you for this time, the time that you have taken to interview with me, I appreciate it very much.

#2 You’re welcome 

Data from interview #2 was explored and the factors from the transcription of that interview that contributed to the interviewee's decision to begin the doctoral program were extracted.  These factors are included below with portions of the interview that support their inclusion in the specific categories listed.

1. Personal Desire

"I'm not the kind of person that just can't do anything."

"I guess my desire to do something different…"
2. Location

"Its so close to where my son lives with his mother in Searcy…"
3. Economics (long-run)

"economics have some impact on it" [talking about earnings after completing the degree]
4. Professional Development

"…to uh progress in my education background, and uh to be productive for the rest of my life."
5. Make a difference in Education

"…I think I can make a difference in students." [teaching teachers on the college level]
6. ASU Faculty & Program

My son was already up here working uh in the Center for Excellence and he liked the people here…"
"…my son knowing the people up here… played a big diffenence."
Interview #3

Interview with Suzette Pickle

Linda J. Davis

Dr. Holman

March27, 2001

Interviewer:  OK this is March the 13th and am interviewing Suzette Pickle. Suzette can you tell me just a little bit about yourself I am really interested in, in your career what, what are you doing?

Suzette:  Well, first of all I'm from Jonesboro, I graduated from Nettleton High school in 1992, married my high school sweetheart. We've been married, it will be 5 years in June, and we have been back in Jonesboro, uh since, oh, the 1st of August before that we were  in Stuttgart for 4 1/2 years. Uh, I went down there right after we got married my husband worked for Farm Credit and so we took the first job he could find, being newly married. And I had just finished, uh, a degree, from ASU in communicative disorders. And I didn't know what I was going to do with it because you know while I was in it I had to have a masters in that program to do that. While I was student teaching, I decided I did not like that field and did not want to pursue a masters in something I didn't enjoy doing. And, so I laid out for a semester and sat home in Stuttgart until I just about pulled my hair out. And decided that I was going to go back to school, since I was so close to being certified in Special Education I would pick up the hours that I needed and get certified to teach. So I did that. I drove from Stuttgart and stayed with my parents up here for a while. And took me a year and a summer and I got all the courses I needed. I had to take, uh, instead of student teaching again I did like 6 hours of field experience and I was able to do that at Stuttgart High School so I didn't have to drive that last, uh, session. And ASU was real good to work with me and come down there and do my observations. And it worked out really good because the girl I was doing student teaching under or doing my field experience under, uh, quit that May. And, so I was already in the classroom already knew the kids, had already helped her to write IEP's that year and just fell into that position. So I was hired and I taught, uh, at Stuttgart for two years at, uh, at a resource special education setting, I had 10th, 11th, and 12th graders. And when we moved back to Jonesboro, I took a resource position at Harrisburg, and I have been there since August. And I teach middle school, uh, I have 5th, 6th, 7th, and 8th  grade resource students, uh, they vary from learning disabled to mildly mentally retarded.

Interviewer:  How about your master degree, did you receive it?

Suzette:
I ended up while I was at Stuttgart, uh, after I'd finished up my special education certification, uh, I'd gone to school all this time and I felt empty. I mean, I taught my 1st semester and just that wasn't enough. And I had a female superintendent, and she was very encouraging and told me options, that I thought, I'm the kind of person that has to see someone in that role to know that it is obtainable. And when I saw that she was superintendent, I thought OH WOW, a female can do this job. And I've always been obsessive compulsive, so I couldn't stay home and not go to school. So immediately started at ASU Bebee working on my masters in administration and I finished it in a year and one-half uh just going non-stop. Matter of fact I took 5 hours one semester, I took 9 through ASU because that was the limit and I picked up 6 at Harding since ASU wouldn't let you do that, I kinda of tricked them. And then finished, uh, that in May of 2000 and I knew 1/2 through my masters that I immediately wanted to get a doctoral degree because I felt that I would need that to obtain the goals that I had and I knew that I wanted out of the classroom also, I knew I wanted to be in administration.

Interviewer:  Did you pursue any hours over and beyond that master's degree in administration?

Suzette:
till, I did my, you know you have to have 15 hours pass a masters to be certified in administration, I did that 15 hours concurrently with my masters, like I picked up the 15 right along with my masters so, I actually did a masters plus 15 in a year and a-half

Interviewer:  What are your goals what do you want to do in your career?

Suzette:
Uh, well, when I first started I just definitely thought I wanted to be a superintendent. But that came from being at Stuttgart and seeing Mrs. Stogstill doing such a wonderful job and having that level of professionalism that a lot women don't come by that easily. And so I immediately patterned myself after her, I mean I had a role model, that was what I was going to do, and I've done my whole life that way. Everything I've done I've had to look at someone doing it. And so that is what gave me the incentive to want to be a superintendent. After getting into the program I still that is what I want to do but for the 1st time I see other options, even teaching on a higher level maybe at a community college those kind of thing, I've thought about recently but I still don't rule out the superintendent thing because I think that's an idea  

Interviewer:  To be your ultimate goal?

Suzette:
Yeah, maybe it just like the ultimate goal, Yeah.

Interviewer:  Why did you choose the Doctoral Program at Arkansas State?

Suzette:
Honestly, I felt the most comfortable with Arkansas State. And I truly didn't know that it wasn't a good thing to have all your degrees from one institution until after I had turned in everything and was set to go. I didn't really see other schools as an option a lot of it was out of ignorance, because I didn't research and see what other schools had to offer, I think because I had a bad experience with ULAR that is the only school I checked into. And I checked into that one first because I lived in Stuttgart and that was only an hour away. And did not get feed back from them, uh, by the time I got feed back from them I'd already been admitted here and was starting the program. And they were sending me a letter saying, oh yeah you've been accepted, and it's like I'd already started here when I hear from them. So I don't think they had the level of professionalism that the instructors and professors at ASU had. I didn't feel as at home, they weren't as welcoming, they weren't as accommodating as I think this entire campus is at ASU.
Interviewer:  What do you like about the doctoral program?

Suzette:
I like the fact that we teach each other. I think we all bring so much to the table and you have learned more from your peers I think than you do from any instructor. And I think that ASU has set it up in a way that we uh present ideas to each other, and we we actually teach each other, if it's making a presentation or uh like Dr. Holifield's round table discussion over a book. I don't think you can learn any more than you can learn from something like that. Where you're throwing ideas at each other and I think I've been forced to be a lot more open minded than I've ever been. I think I was always closed minded because of the way I've been raised. And I think since I've been here I've seen things from other's views and other's perspectives that I don't think I would have ever been exposed to had I not pursued a higher degree.

Interviewer:  How do you feel about the whole concept of a cohort that goes through it's classes from the beginning to the end of the term from when they enter the program?

Suzette:
I really like it. I didn't think I would at first. Because I almost thought you know you could get stuck with a bunch of people that you had nothing in common with and didn't want to be around and it could be a bad situation. But, I think it is wonderful now because you, I think we have this cohesiveness that you just have a bond that you're going to have with them forever. Having endured all this together. And like I said you learn so much from each other and you learn to value so much. I mean you may not agree with everyone in there but you can understand where they're coming from and you have someone to bounce ideas off of. Uh, just like you know me interviewing for positions, at my age and getting the negative feedback I've gotten from other people in my school saying oh we don't want to work for a little kid. I'm not treated like a little kid here, even though people you know are quite a bit older than me uh they're very encouraging. You know everyone has asked me if I've gotten a interview or if gotten any calls back or anything like that. They are genuinely concerned. And so you come here and you are rejuvenated for the rest of the week. Because you're like you're with people who have the same goals that you have and that want to do better. And they encourage you to go out and do a better job in your profession and kinda have a renewed spirit.

Interview:  How do you, uh, how do you think that, uh, well let me put it this way if you were going to be a PR person for this program, what do you think would be the selling point for it, for the program at ASU?

Suzette:
I think it would definitely be the professors. Because the professors that I've had so far have been just extraordinary. Last semester was real different than this semester in the fact that we did a lot of reading last semester and not a lot of hands on. This time we've done more group work with Dr. Holman and Dr. Holifield and it's been taught from a different perspectives. So I think that you're getting just a true picture all the way around of a solid education. And I think the professors are real caring they seem to be very concerned. Uh, just even when we started, Dr. Fodesy, took the time to get to know each of us I felt like instead of treating like another student, another face in the hall. I think he calls us by name, I think that is very important, and I think the hominess you feel in this program is a big selling point.
Interviewer:  How do you think that you will carry these characteristics you just named over in your role as a school administrator?

Suzette:  Oh, I think it's greatly shaped the way I will be an administrator. I think I will a lot more sensitive having been in this program. Uh, just like with Dr. Cox I think I learned a lot from him as far as stewardship; something that I don't think I would have been exposed to at another university. uh, and I think that would, will make me a more understanding person, someone who will take others views and perspectives more. Uh, just a better administrator.

Interviewer:
Thank you so much.

Data from interview #3 was explored and the factors from the transcription of that interview that contributed to the interviewee's decision to begin the doctoral program were extracted.  These factors are included below with portions of the interview that support their inclusion in the specific categories listed.

1. Personal Desire

"I've always been obsessive compulsive, so I couldn't stay home and not go to school."

2. ASU Faculty & Program

"I felt the most comfortable with Arkansas State."

"…bad experience with ULAR that is the only school I checked into."

Entire campus at ASU is "welcoming…accommodating"

"…selling point…the professors."
"…the hominess you feel in this program is a big selling point."
3. ASU fellow students

"I like the fact that we teach each other."

"…learned more from your peers I think than you do from any instructor."

"The concept of a cohort…I really like it."

"Cohesiveness…someone to bounce ideas off of."
4. Professional Development

"I wanted to be a superintendent"
Interview #4

Larry Fries 1

Interviewer:
Larry Fries

Interviewee:
Mitzie Smith

Purpose of Study:

Explore the factors that led the members coming to ASU and the factors that led them to begin their doctoral degree in this program.

Interviewer:
Mitzie, tell me a little about your educational degree.

Interviewee:

I have been in the teaching field for 20 years. I grew up in Tennessee. I am not from the state of Arkansas. I went to college and got my undergraduate degree and got my Bachelor's of Science degree in Education with certification in English and French from the University of Tennessee of Martin. I did that in 3 years. Once I get started in a program I just like to get in there and get it done. At that time it didn't occur to me to go ahead and get my Master's degree but I didn't. I later went back and got my Master's and did that strictly in English. At that point in time I had decided that I had taught enough in the public school. I had only taught in high school. I had taught enough to realize that that really wasn't all I really wanted. I wanted more of an academic challenge. I wanted students that were more motivated, who were serious about education. I didn't want to bother with all the petty paperwork and I didn't want people dictating little mediocre things to me and insulting my intelligence. That is how I got my Master's in English.

I have been teaching part time at the Mississippi County Community College. A few years ago I had checked to see if they had any openings and at the present time they do not. So as of right now I am teaching full time at Gosnell High School teaching English. Along the way seeing how I did not get my Master's in Education like a lot of people did. The Master's in English I only have English hours and I only had my foot in the door for the Education so what I done last summer was pick up these odd education hours to fulfill the Master's in certification to be an Administrator. So now I have my have my Administrators certificate at this point in time. Ultimately that is something I am looking at but then again I have given that some thought and ultimately while doing that I decided well I really wanted my doctorate degree for many different reasons. So that is when I started working on this program. But I have been teaching for 20 years but I have taught in 3 different states. But unlike many people I have moved.

Interviewer:
You said" many different reasons why you wanted to seek your doctorate degree". Can you specify some of those reasons why?

Interviewee:

Yes, there are many different reasons. 1) I really tend to be a goal oriented person, some what of a perfectionist because I want to get the most out of life. And if the most I can get out of life is a Doctorate degree and achieve the very best that I can possibly be and get to where I want to then that is one of my motivational factors. Some of it is the interior motivation. I have always been very strong motivated within, I have never had to have anyone motivate me. Although my mother and my family have been supportive of me. My mother and father never went to college. I am the only one of three children that did go on even though it is hard to explain to them. Both of my brothers are younger than I am. I am the oldest child in the family. As the consequence I have always been the goal seeker, very ambitious. I guess that is part of it. But I do find it hard to explain to them why I am doing it. People sometimes think my gosh, "you got 2 kids. I have a 14-year-old that plays sports year round and I have a 20-year-old daughter and they think you got a job what are you doing? I guess a lot of them don't understand what I am doing and I guess they never will.

The other thing that is the biggest motivational factor is for career advancement. I want to a lot better job than I have right now. I want to leave the area that I am doing right now. I don't want to teach at the high school level. Someday I would like to teach at the university level. I like to do a lot of research. I really interested in doing a lot of studies. I think I have came up with some studies that I would like to look at. But in order to do some of these studies I would need the time to go out and visit these places. To look at them and have time to talk to people and to interview them for like 8-10 hours at a time. Let's be honest you can't do that and teach in the public school from 8-3 and go out and do research and have the flexibility in your schedule.

I also want to be respected for the intelligence that I have. To be honest with you I have worked for some good people that I have worked for but well to be honest were not any smarter than I and some that were not as smart as they could have been. I want to improve education. I have looked into redesigning teacher education programs. Possibly would like to work in the one of the public schools as an Administrator higher up. I really would not want to be a building principal and become a police officer. I really want to improve an organization whether it's a university or whether it's the curriculum or the programs in the overall structure of the school.

Interviewer:
Now would this be like a consultant?

Interviewee:

I have even given that a possibility. I would not be opposed to being an Educational

Consultant. I do like talking to people maybe be a teacher supervisor. A lot of people do that now m my school district. They come to me to help solve their problems or for my advice. I would not be opposed to something like that. I have even researched with some of the courses that we are taking with working with some of these organizations and associations. I have even researched the American Association of Colleges for Teacher Education. That sounds very fascinating to me. To be on the cutting edge of education. New programs, better ways to learn. As a matter of fact a presentation that I am doing for the web based education. All these wonderful things like getting migrant students laptops, letting them take their courses on-line and graduate from high school because migrant students is like a 50% drop out rate because they move from place to place and they get behind and can't finish. So there are all of these new programs out there all the time that only 4 or 5 states are doing that. There are so many things that can be brought to all the different states, even to the teachers. There are so many different things can be done like just in area web and the Internet as far the technology. But the teachers are going to have the training and the Administrators and the people that make the decisions in the school systems. Whether it be at the university level or if it is at the public school level from K-12. They are going to have to have the time and the money and know that. Like we are going to do a "band aid" approach. Okay, we have a problem with truancy so let's stick a Band-Aid on it and see if it will go away.

I don't like that attitude and I am not good at sticking my head in the sand and acting like we don't have a problem and not approaching the problem directly. I want things to be the best that they can possibly be and I have found that with my students in my class when you demand high expectations most of the time they are going to give you those. I think that that carries over to a lot of things with workers, teacher/student relationships. I really feel like I have a mission. I really feel like I have an idea for a book. I was involved in almost a "scandalous", I almost hate to use the word "scandalous". Well with the book censorship issue ordeal I am serious. Where I had to go do a presentation. As a matter of fact the Administrator, Superintendent and the Principal, I could tell by the shaking of their voices and their body mannerisms and so forth they really wanted me to revoke the Grapes of Wrath in a class I was teaching. It was a AP class and knew the books were collegiate level and dealt with more adult type content. Well the Grapes of Wrath was written for a wonderful reason. I don't know if you remember reading it or not. Steinbeck lived with the migrants and wanted to expose all of the mistreatment of the migrants and expose the people who were treating them so inhumanly not giving them hot water, having them live in shacks, having them go into endless debt trying to buy a loaf of bread for their family. They couldn't even come out even after a day's work. Paying them not even enough to survive. So he exposed this in his book. Obviously we are talking about a universally and internationally acclaimed writer and I was teaching that book for all the wonderful reasons that it was. It was not like I was using all of the language in class, I was too much of a professional to do that. Well, I had a parent that got into a tizzy rationally; he was a Baptist person, of the Baptist religious faith. He thought I got into what I would call a vendetta and basically went through the brand new hardbound book. He went through and literally marked out in a permanent fashion any words that any sexual implications or any profanity and wanted his child removed from the class. This went on for months. Anytime we discussed this book in class that child had to be removed from the class. Meanwhile, my husband is a journalist, and he is charge of the newspaper there in town so our jobs clashed now. So this is where this really became an issue. They were writing things in the paper. They were even puffing my name in the paper. I have kept all of theses articles. I have some experiences of a lifetime most teachers have never had.

Interviewer:
Your husband was putting your full name in the paper?

Interviewee:

Oh yes, well the reporters were covering this. These were issues that were going on in the schools. So they would interview the principal about the matter and so forth. Anyway, they would run the article in the paper for whatever it was and then this man would go to the principal's house and this was when I lived in Tennessee. He would basically call me anything and everything. He questioned my morals. He basically knew nothing about me and he was judging me on a book that had some profanity. He didn't even understand why and his daughter knew why. I even invited him to come to class and everything. So it did go to the school board meeting and they put it on television. There were endless articles and editorials in the paper.

Interviewer:
Regarding the "Grapes of Wrath"?

Interviewee:


Regarding the book, regarding my instance on this child read this book in this program. In order for her to prepare for the tests, which that book in on suggested AP reading list to be prepared for the AP test.

Interview:
The book has been around for years.

Interviewee:


Exactly, this book is not a piece of trash, it is a classic and for all the wonderful reasons it was reason and I made that quite sure. Well, so again you are dealing with people like that. So obviously, that is one situation. This is part of the experiences and I have collected some folders and I really want to write a book some of these things. These things that these beginning teachers or people going into education that have no incite into. As a matter a fact this school that I am working at I got laid off because I was the youngest one in our building in 1993. Remember how they were down sizing all of the airbase facilities? Well, Gosnell High School used to be an airbase school. It was Blytheville Airforce Base. I was the youngest one in the English department and I knew the axe was going to fall. That is when I moved on and found another job. See all situations that a person can get put into their life. I decided that after all of these experiences. By the way, the one thing happened one year and the other happened the following year. So I had two major turning points in my life. Up to then I was a happy go lucky teacher teaching my class and being happy in my own little world. Well it is amazing at what life can dish out at you and slap you up side the head. So needless to say after those couple of episodes I got to be very out spoken and will take on anyone at anytime. That is really a driving force behind in this program I want to change a lot of these attitudes. I know I can't go out and touch some magic button and make everybody perfect. But there are some things that can be done to prevent some of the problems that are happening in the schools if we would attack it enough in a more aggressive fashion. I believe in prevention, I think that there are a lot of things that can be done to prevent problems like with violence or anything else. If we could defuse the bomb before it goes off I think it will help out our school, our kids, parents. I think that is what it should be all about.
Data from interview #4 was explored and the factors from the transcription of that interview that contributed to the interviewee's decision to begin the doctoral program were extracted.  These factors are included below with portions of the interview that support their inclusion in the specific categories listed.

1. Personal Desire

"I really tend to be a goal oriented person…a perfectionist…"
"…some of it is interior motivation." [intrinsic motivation]
"I also want to be respected for the intelligence that I have."
2. Advancement

"…the biggest motivational factor is for career advancement."
"I want to leave the area…high school level I am at."
"…I would like to teach at the university level."
"I like to do a lot of research."
3. Make a difference in Education

"I want to improve education."

"I want to change a lot of attitudes" [with regard to school policy]
Analytic Strategy


The analytic strategy utilized in this study involved the analysis of data in an attempt to uncover commonalities between four different interviewees with regard to the reasons they chose to begin the doctorate program.  The analysis of data resulted in triangulation based upon multiple data sources and multiple instances of data occurrences within single interviews.  Every attempt was made to show at least three separate occurrences, either in different interviews or in response to different questions within a single interview, of a specific factor indicating motivation of a member of Cohort IX to begin the doctoral program.  


Initially, after the interviews were transcribed, a list of factors was compiled indicating reasons (documented in the interviews) cohort members had begun the doctorate program.  These factors were then categorized within each interview.  The interview data was then combined and all categories were listed as well as statements supporting those factors.  Finally, the occurrences of each factor throughout all interviews were listed and sorted from the factor occurring most in the interviews to the factor occurring most infrequently.

Table 1 below shows the factors cited by interviewees as what motivated them to begin the doctoral program.  After compilation of the list of factors, they were placed in categories for analysis.  These categories included data from all interviews, which was color-coded.  Data highlighted in Magenta was taken from interview #1.  Data highlighted in Green was taken from interview #2.  Data highlighted in Yellow was taken from interview #3.  Data highlighted in Blue was taken from interview #4.  The color-coding allows one to see the number of occurrences of data supporting each factor taken from different interviews.

Table 1 -- Final Categories Reflecting occurrences of factors

	Advancement
	"…mentors…professionals…said…you are going to have to have a doctorate program…to step to the next level."
"…you are going to have to have a doctorate degree and that was really the impetus."

"I applied for a couple of jobs that didn't get..it was doctorate preferred." [Committees were "…only looking at those individuals that have doctorate degrees."]
"…the biggest motivational factor is for career advancement."
"I want to leave the area…high school level I am at."
"…I would like to teach at the university level."
"I like to do a lot of research."


	Location
	"most definitely played a role ("primary factor", "biggest issue")"

"ultimately what played into factor for me…travel…time away from my family"

If you need to talk with a professor you can "walk down there and talk to a professor."

"…having access to my professors…"

"having access to students"

"easier" because of living in the same town.
"Its so close to where my son lives with his mother in Searcy…"


	Professional Development
	Being more marketable

"doors are going to open"

"…to uh progress in my education background, and uh to be productive for the rest of my life."
"I wanted to be a superintendent"

	Economics (Long-run)
	"I'm going to be compensated financially at a higher pay level"
"economics have some impact on it" [talking about earning after completing the degree]

	Economics (short-run)
	"50% of the tuition" discount 

	Personal Desire
	"I'm not the kind of person that just can't do anything."

"I guess my desire to do something different…"
"I've always been obsessive compulsive, so I couldn't stay home and not go to school."

"I really tend to be a goal oriented person…a perfectionist…"
"…some of it is interior motivation." [intrinsic motivation]
"I also want to be respected for the intelligence that I have."

	ASU faculty & program
	My son was already up here working uh in the Center for Excellence and he liked the people here…"
"…my son knowing the people up here… played a big diffenence."
"I felt the most comfortable with Arkansas State."

"…bad experience with ULAR that is the only school I checked into."

Entire campus at ASU is "welcoming…accommodating"

"…selling point…the professors."
"…the hominess you feel in this program is a big selling point."


	ASU fellow students
	"I like the fact that we teach each other."

"…learned more from your peers I think than you do from any instructor."

"The concept of a cohort…I really like it."

"Cohesiveness…someone to bounce ideas off of."


	Make a Difference in Education
	"…I think I can make a difference in students." [teaching teachers on the college level]
"I want to improve education."

"I want to change a lot of attitudes" [with regard to school policy]



Summary of Results

The most commonly occurring factors instrumental in motivating members of Cohort IX to begin the doctoral program were advancement, location, and ASU faculty and program.  There were seven occurrences indicating this factor throughout two interviews for each of these factors.  Data collected from interviewees with regard to advancement included comments such as "...mentors...professionals...said...you are going to have to have a doctorate program...to step to the next level.", "...the biggest motivational factor is for career advancement.", and "...I would like to teach at the university level."  Data collected from interviewees concerning location included the statements:  "ultimately what played into factor for me...travel...time away from my family", "easier" because of living in the same town, and "Its so close to where my son lives with his mother in Searcy...".  Data supporting ASU faculty and program as a motivating factor included "My son was already up here working uh in the Center for Excellence and he liked the people here...", "I felt the most comfortable with Arkansas State", and the entire campus at ASU is "welcoming...accommodating"  The number of occurrences coupled with the fact that these occurrences came from multiple interviewees indicates a fairly strong triangulation.


The next most commonly occurring factor motivating members of Cohort IX to begin the doctoral program was personal desire.  Personal desire was mentioned six times throughout three different interviews.  The data includes the comments "I guess my desire to do something different..." motivated me, "...I couldn't stay home and not go to school.", and "I really tend to be a goal oriented person...a perfectionist..."  The fact that the number of occurrences was high for this factor while the number of separate interviews in which these were found was high, at three interviews, indicates a very strong triangulation.


Professional development also yielded strong triangulation.  Data indicating this factor was found in three separate interviews and included statements such as "doors are going to open.", "to uh progress in my education background...", and "I wanted to be a superintendent."


The desire to make a difference in education was also a fairly common factor in motivating members of Cohort IX to begin the doctoral program.  Although there were three occurrences of data supporting this factor, these occurrences were evident in only two interviews.  However, a degree of triangulation exists as comments seem to suggest that one interviewee addressed this issue at two different times during the interview.


Other factors indicated by interviewees were ASU fellow students and economics.  While data existed that indicated these may have been factors that motivated members to begin the doctoral program, no strong triangulation could be established.  One interviewee indicated that this was a very strong factor with four occurrences within that interview but no other interviewees substantiated it.  Finally, while data addressing economics occurred three times within two interviews, there were only two instances in which the interviewee was speaking of long-term economic rewards in terms of increased salary.  The other occurrence of information concerning economics was in references to the short-term benefit of tuition discount.
As a result of this study the indication is that several factors have impacted the decision of members of Cohort IX to begin the doctorate program.  Those factors which were supported by triangulation of data were a) advancement, b) location, c) ASU faculty and program, d) personal desire, e) professional development, and f) making a difference in education.  Those factors which were not supported by strong triangulation of data were a) ASU fellow students, b) economics in the long -run, and c) economics in the short-run.

Final Categories Reflecting Content Analysis


Table 2 below shows the final categories of factors affecting decisions of members of Cohort IX to begin the doctoral program.  It also includes the number of occurrences of each factor, whether the factor was supported in the data, and whether the data provided triangulation of each factor.  If there were at least two instances in which a factor was supported, it is said to have been supported.  However, a factor is said to have been triangulated only if it has occurred at least three times throughout at least two of the interviews.

Table 2 -- Final Categories reflecting content analysis (factors sorted from most occurring to least occurring)

	Factors
	Occurrences
	Supported
	Triangulation

	Advancement
	7 (in two interviews)
	Yes
	Yes

	Location
	7 (in two interviews)
	Yes
	Yes

	ASU faculty & program
	7 (in two interviews)
	Yes
	Yes

	Personal Desire
	6 (in three interviews)
	Yes
	Yes

	Professional Development
	4 (in three interviews)
	Yes
	Yes

	ASU fellow students
	4 (in one interview)
	Yes
	No

	Make a difference in Education
	3 (in two interviews)
	Yes
	Yes

	Economics (long-run)
	2 (in two interviews)
	Yes
	No

	Economics (short-run)
	1
	No
	No


Written Narrative

The members of Cohort IX began the doctorate program at Arkansas State University in Jonesboro in the fall of 2000.  While there were many factors which affected their decisions to begin the program, several factors were common among the members of this cohort.  The most commonly occurring factors were advancement, location, and the ASU faculty and program.  The number of occurrences for each of these factors coupled with the fact that these occurrences came from multiple interviewees indicates a fairly strong triangulation.

It seems that most members of the cohort were concerned with the potential for their advancement within education as a result of earning a doctorate.  There were seven occurrences indicating this factor throughout two interviews.  Data collected from interviewees with regard to advancement included comments such as "...mentors...professionals...said...you are going to have to have a doctorate program...to step to the next level.", "...the biggest motivational factor is for career advancement.", and "...I would like to teach at the university level."  Therefore, evidence suggested that this factor was important in motivating this cohort to begin the doctorate program.

Location was an important factor in the motivation to begin the doctoral program with seven instances where this factor was cited within two different interviews.  Data collected from interviewees concerning location included the statements:  "ultimately what played into factor for me...travel...time away from my family", "easier" because of living in the same town, and "Its so close to where my son lives with his mother in Searcy...".  These multiple sources of occurrences of data indicate the existence of this factor as important to the cohort.

Additionally, the ASU faculty and program were listed as a factor, collectively, which was supported in multiple interviews as having an effect on members of the cohort choosing to begin the program.  This factor was eluded to seven different times throughout two separate interviews.  Data supporting ASU faculty and program as a motivating factor included "My son was already up here working uh in the Center for Excellence and he liked the people here...", "I felt the most comfortable with Arkansas State", and the entire campus at ASU is "welcoming...accommodating"

The factor motivating members of Cohort IX to begin the doctoral program that yielded the strongest triangulation in terms of number of occurrences combined with the number of interviewees citing it was personal desire.  Personal desire was mentioned six times throughout three different interviews.  The data includes the comments "I guess my desire to do something different..." motivated me, "...I couldn't stay home and not go to school.", and "I really tend to be a goal oriented person...a perfectionist..."  The fact that the number of occurrences was high for this factor while the number of separate interviews in which these were found was high, appearing in three interviews, indicates a very strong triangulation.


According to the responses of interviewees participating in Cohort IX, professional development also yielded strong triangulation.  Data indicating this factor was found in three separate interviews and included statements such as "doors are going to open.", "to uh progress in my education background...", and "I wanted to be a superintendent."  This data not only occurred three times but was cited by three different cohort members within the context of three separate interviews.


Another fairly common factor in motivating members of Cohort IX to begin the doctoral program was the desire to make a difference in education.  While the occurrences of data supporting this factor were found in only two interviews, one interview yielded two separate situations in which the interviewee returned to the ability to make a difference in education indicating additional support for that factor.  As a result, a degree of triangulation exists as comments seem to suggest that one interviewee addressed this issue at two different times during the interview and another addressed it independent of that interview.

As a result of this study the indication is that several factors have impacted the decision of members of Cohort IX to begin the doctorate program.  Those factors which are supported by triangulation of data were a) advancement, b) location, c) ASU faculty and program, d) personal desire, e) professional development, and f) making a difference in education.  Those factors seem to be very important to the members of Cohort IX when indicating why they choose to begin the doctoral program.  There may be many other factors which were involved in the decisions of the cohort group as a whole.  However, those listed above are factors that were supported by the data gathered in this study which indicated a commonality of each of these factors between cohort members.

to advance to the next level.
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